

# Self Regulation - Promoting Positive Behaviour Policy

(To be read in conjunction with our policies on Positive Handling, Anti-Bullying,

Equalities, Medical Conditions and First Aid, Child on Child Abuse.)

## September 2024

Version 1.8

Reivew date: September 2025

#### **Version Control**

Version	Date	Notes	Updated by
1	January 2018		
1.1	May 2020	Name changed from 'Behaviour and Discipline	Jane Charman and Natasha
		Policy' to 'Promoting Positive Behaviour Policy'	Parry
		Policy reviewed	
		Approved at 6 July 2020 FGB	
1.2	May 2021	Name of policy changed	Leigh McGuinness
		Self regulation and Co-regulation section added	
		Amendments / adaptations made in	
		consequences section	
1.3	September 2021	Amendments / adaptations made in	Laura Newell
		consequences section	
1.4	October 2021	Amendment – 'fixed-term exclusions' phrase	Stephanie Croucher
		changed to 'suspensions'	
		Update of DfE Guidance documents and updates	
1.5	November 2021	Reviewed at FGB 15.11.21	FGB
1.6	November 2022	Amended and updated in line with Behaviour In	FGB
		School document 09/22	
		Reviewed at FGB 14/11/22	
		Shared with all staff	
1.7	September 2023	Additional section on Searching and Confiscation,	Natasha Parry
		and minor amendments made. Contents page	
		added. Approved by Senior Leadership Team.	
	Nov 2023	Noted as approved at Full Governing Body	
		meeting on 13/11/2023 and shared with all staff.	
		meeting on 13/11/2023 and shared with an stan.	
1.8	July 2024	Updated to include Zones of Regulation.	Natasha Parry
		Updated guidance referred to. Approved by	Jane Charman
		Senior Leadership Team.	
	Sept 2024	Due to be noted as approved at Full Governing	
	,	Board meeting on 11/11/2024 and shared with	
		all staff.	

All staff as part of their induction programme sign to confirm that they have read and understood this policy. Continuing Professional Development, linked to self-regulation and promoting positive behaviour', is provided for all staff.

#### Contents

Version Control	2
ntroduction	4
Aims and objectives	4
Behaviour expectations and pupils with Special Educational Needs and/or Disability (SEND)	5
Responding to the behaviour of pupils with Special Educational Needs and/or Disability (SEND)	5
Self-Regulation and Co-Regulation	5
Zones of Regulation	6
Connection	6
Empathy	6
Clear Routines	6
Boundaries	6
Mindfulness	6
Celebration	7
Time to Think and Reflect	7
Child on Child Abuse	8
Searching and Confiscation	8
The role of the Class teacher	9
The role of the Headteacher	10
The role of parents and carers	10
The role of governors	10
Pastoral Support Programmes (PSP's)	10
Behaviour Support Plans (BSP's)	11
Suspensions	11
Monitoring and review	11

#### Introduction

The aim of this policy is to create a safe environment in which all groups of pupils can learn and reach their full potential.

This policy addresses both the promotion of self regulation and positive behaviour, in accordance with our school's general aims and ethos, and also our policy on rewards and consequences with regard to pupils' behaviour. It also contains our policy on suspensions and permanent exclusions.

We regard it to be a highly important aspect of children's education and development that they learn to behave respectfully towards others and towards the community in which they live. Positive behaviour underpins effective learning. The ability to self- regulate emotions supports positive behaviour, supporting children to develop personal and social skills in order to live fulfilling and rewarding lives as adults.

Behaviour which, in any way, disrupts learning, is unacceptable in our school, and, through the constant promotion of positive behaviour, linked to our School Values, (Honesty, Kindness, Courage, Respect, Positivity), we seek to minimise, if not eliminate any such behaviour. Alongside this policy, we are an inclusive school and endeavour to meet the needs of all children, including those with social, emotional and mental health difficulties

#### Aims and objectives

It is a primary aim of our school that every member of the school community feels valued and respected, and that each person is treated fairly and well. We are a caring community, built on a climate of mutual trust and respect for all. The school's behaviour policy is therefore intended to support all members of our school community in living and working together in a mutually beneficial way. It aims to promote an environment in which everyone feels happy, safe, secure and respected.

The school promotes good relationships, so that people can work together with the common purpose of helping everyone to learn and thrive.

The school expects every member of the school community to behave in a considerate and respectful way towards others.

We aim to treat all children fairly and to apply this behaviour policy consistently.

This policy aims to help children grow in a safe and secure environment, and to become positive, responsible and increasingly independent members of the school and the wider community.

The school aims to value and reward good behaviour which promotes effective learning, as this will develop an ethos of kindness and co-operation. This policy is designed to promote good learning behaviour, rather than merely deter anti-social behaviour.

The school recognises that unacceptable behaviour is often a child's way of communicating that something is wrong. They are finding something difficult, rather than being manipulative or controlling. Therefore understanding children's cognitive development is key to supporting children's emotional development. We support children to self-regulate their emotions, by co-regulating through de-escalation, connection, empathy, clear routines, boundaries and mindfulness.

### Behaviour expectations and pupils with Special Educational Needs and/or Disability (SEND)

Our school consistently seeks to promote high standards of behaviour and provide the necessary support to ensure all pupils can achieve and thrive both in and out of the classroom. We use a whole-school approach that meets the needs of all pupils in the school, including pupils with SEND. We create calm environments which benefit pupils with SEND, enabling them to learn.

As a school we endeavour to manage pupil behaviour effectively, whether or not the pupil has underlying additional needs. When a pupil is identified as having SEND, the graduated approach is used to assess, plan, deliver, and then we review the impact of the support provided.

Some behaviours are more likely associated with particular types of SEND, such as a pupil with speech, language and communication needs who may not understand a verbal instruction. Behaviour will often need to be considered in relation to a pupil's SEND, although it does not follow that every behaviour incident be connected to their SEND.

School staff try to anticipate likely triggers of unacceptable behaviour and put in place support to prevent these. Illustrative examples of preventative measures include, (but are not limited to):

- short, planned movement breaks for a pupil whose SEND means that they find it difficult to sit still for long / significant periods of time;
- adjusting seating plans to allow a pupil with visual or hearing impairment to sit in sight of the teacher;
- adjusting uniform requirements for a pupil with sensory issues or who has severe eczema;
- training for staff in understanding conditions such as autism;
- providing counselling support and group nurture interventions according to need

Any preventative measure should take into account the specific circumstances and requirements of the pupil concerned.

## Responding to the behaviour of pupils with Special Educational Needs and/or Disability (SEND)

We consistently and fairly promote high standards of behaviour for all pupils and provide additional support where needed to ensure pupils can achieve and learn as well as possible.

We consider whether a pupil's SEND has contributed to the misbehaviour and if so, whether it is appropriate and lawful to sanction the pupil.

As a school we will consider whether any reasonable adjustments need to be made to the sanction in response to any disability the pupil may have. We try to understand the underlying causes of behaviour and whether additional support is needed.

#### **Self-Regulation and Co-Regulation**

Self-regulation is the process that a child's brain goes through in order to give them the ability to control their behaviours and emotions in response to a particular situation. Young children need support to develop self-regulation skills, therefore staff in school support children through a variety of different techniques – this is known as co-regulation.

#### **Zones of Regulation**

Zones of Regulation are introduced from the start of Reception. These zones give children the language to describe how they are feeling in order to deal with their feelings. Children are taught that feelings come in different sizes, intensities, and levels of energy that are unique within our brains and bodies. To make them easier to talk about, think about, and regulate, The Zones of Regulation organizes our feelings, states of alertness, and energy levels into four colored Zones – Blue, Green, Yellow, and Red. The simple, common language and visual structure of The Zones of Regulation helps make the complex skill of regulation more concrete for learners and those who support them. We learn to regulate our Zones to meet our goals and task demands, as well as support our overall well-being.

#### Connection

Staff make connections with children, developing trust and respect. Staff gain the trust of children through being fair and consistent. Trust supports children's self esteem and self regulation.

#### **Empathy**

Staff aim to empathise with children (even if they do not agree with their actions) and support children to develop empathy for others through;

- Recognising and naming their feelings ('I know that you are angry, it's ok to be angry').
- Supporting children to express their feelings appropriately. (It's ok to be angry, but it is not ok to be unkind to your friend.)
- Supporting children to recognise other people's needs and emotions ('When you did x you made your friend feel sad')

#### **Clear Routines**

Staff set clear routines to help children to feel safe and secure. Staff support children to understand expectations and classroom routines. Classroom rules are decided with the children. Visual timetables are used as a reminder of what is planned for the day. Some children may need extra support to follow routines, for example, adult support to understand or talk through what will happen next or through the use of visual prompts.

#### **Boundaries**

Children are made aware of expectations through the classroom rules, the schools 'super skills for learning' and the school values. Children are encouraged to take ownership of their actions and to make 'good choices' in relation to their behaviour. Positive behaviour is praised. Children are reminded that all emotions are acceptable, but that not all behaviours are acceptable.

#### Mindfulness

Staff use mindfulness as a technique to help children stay calm. The school promotes mindfulness through;

- Naming children's feelings and empathising.
- Talking with children about where they feel emotion in their bodies (their tummy, their head etc)
- Talking about children's different emotions when they are frustrated, excited, happy, sad, or angry.
- Mindful deep breathing techniques
- Time out to be alone / think ( use of thinking areas)
- Creative activities such as clay and painting
- 1:1 with our Nurture Support Mentor and/or School Cousellor

#### Celebration

We praise and celebrate children's positive behaviour in a variety of ways:

- Teachers congratulate children and give them verbal praise and encouragement.
- Our values, (Respect, Honesty, Courage, Kindness, Positivity) and 'Super Skills for Learning' are
  promoted and celebrated throughout the school. These are life long skills set for effective learning.
  They encourage children to be: reflective, confident, creative, resourceful and curious. They teach
  pupils to make connections, take risks, collaborate, communicate and persevere. These learning skills
  are rewarded in our weekly 'Stars of the Week' assemblies and also in our half-termly 'Headteacher
  Award' Assemblies.
- Pupil achievement is valued, encouraged and displayed, as much as possible, around the school.
- Children are given the opportunity to show their learning to other pupils/teachers in the school, including the Headteacher and members of the Headship Team.
- Teachers congratulate and praise children for considerate, positive behaviour, which promotes effective learning.
- Certificates are awarded for consistently good learning / learning behaviour, or to acknowledge effort
  or acts of kindness in school, linked to our values. These are distributed at weekly 'stars of the week'
  assemblies. We also hold a special 'Headteacher's Award' assembly, where children are rewarded for
  applying the 'Superskills for Learning' or demonstrating the School Values. Parents are invited to attend
  these special 'Headteacher Award' assemblies.
- All classes have opportunities to share examples with one another, not only of their best learning, but of
  considerate and respectful behaviour towards others, through assemblies, circle times and in daily
  learning sessions.

#### **Time to Think and Reflect**

- The school uses a number of consequences / sanctions to support the School Values, and to ensure a safe and positive learning environment. We employ each consequence appropriately to each individual situation. There is a hierarchical level of consequence as to which adult deals with the situation, starting with the class teacher and finishing with the Headteacher. The aim is always to support the child and to diffuse a situation wherever possible.
- We expect children to be attentive in lessons. If they are consistently inattentive, teachers may ask them to move nearer to themselves or the teaching assistant, or to move to the 'Thinking Area' in the classroom to 'turn over a new leaf.' In this area, children have the opportunity to calm down and recognise the inappropriateness of their previous behaviour and make a decision as to when they are ready to return to the class session. This may also be child-initiated, should they feel that they need

some time for reflection on their own behaviour. There are "Thinking Areas" in every classroom and throughout learning environments (both indoor and outdoor) around the school.

- We expect children to try their best in all activities. If they do not do so, we may ask them to repeat a task or activity.
- If a child is disruptive in class, the teacher will speak to them. If a child continues to disrupt learning, we may give the child some 'time out' from the rest of the class, supporting them through co-regulation until they calm down and are able to comply with the teacher's expectations. The time for self-reflection / time out will be proportionate to the age of the child.
- The safety of the children is paramount in all situations. If a child's behaviour endangers the safety of others, the class teacher stops the activity and prevents the child from taking part. The behaviour is addressed, staff will find out why the child behaved in an unsafe way and support them to understand how to keep themselves and others safe.
- If a child behaves inappropriately towards another child, the incident is recorded and the child may engage in a 'time out' / 'thinking time'. Staff seek to support both children, comforting the child when necessary and supporting the child who acted inappropriately to understand what happened and how they could have behaved / reacted differently. If a child repeatedly has difficulties self-regulating and acts in a way that disrupts learning, the school will contact the child's parents/carers and seek an appointment in order to discuss the situation, with a view to working together and consistently to improve the behaviour of the child.
- The class teacher discusses the School Values with their class, which are agreed by the children and displayed on the wall of the classroom. In this way, every child in the school knows the standard of behaviour that we expect in our school. If there are incidents of anti-social behaviour, the class teacher addresses these with the whole class through 'circle time'.
- The school does not tolerate bullying of any kind. Bullying is when a person or a group repeatedly and intentionally use their power to systematically intimidate, hurt, oppress or damage someone else or their property. If we discover that an act of bullying or intimidation has taken place, we act immediately to stop any further occurrences of such behaviour, (see anti-bullying policy). Whilst we acknowledge that instances of bullying do sometimes ocur, we do everything in our power to ensure that all children attend school free from fear of any kind from others. Bullying in any form is not tolerated at our school.
- Teachers will only intervene physically to prevent injury to a child, or if a child is in danger of hurting him/herself, through the use of safer handling techniques. These actions are in line with government guidelines and are recorded and reported to the Headship Team and parents. De-escalation is always used first.

#### **Child on Child Abuse**

At Park Hill Infant School, we respond to all reports and concerns of child on child sexual violence and sexual harassment, including those that have happened outside of the school premises and/or online. We continue to ensure that any form of abuse or harmful behaviour is dealt with immediately and consistently to reduce the extent of harm to the young person, with full consideration of the impact on that individual child's emotional and mental well-being. (Refer to Child on Child abuse policy)

#### **Searching and Confiscation**

In line with the DfE guidance <u>Searching</u>, <u>screening</u> and <u>confiscation</u>: <u>advice for schools</u>, the Headteacher and staff authorised by them have a statutory power to search pupils/property on school premises.

Searching can play a critical role in ensuring that schools are safe environments for all pupils and staff. It is a vital measure to safeguard and promote staff and pupil welfare, and to maintain high standards of behaviour through which pupils can learn and thrive. A list of 'prohibited items' is listed at the end of this policy, (which is by no means exhaustive). This includes the content of mobile phones and other devices, for example as a result of a reasonable suspicion that a device contains illegal or undesirable material, including but not exclusive to sexual images, pornography, violence or bullying.

A search will always be conducted by two members of staff, of the same sex to the pupil, who will explain to the pupil the reason for the search and how it will take place. There will be the opportunity for the pupil to ask questions. Parents will always be informed if a search has taken place and school records will be kept on CPOMS.

The staff members carrying out the search can confiscate any item that they have reasonable grounds for suspecting

- poses a risk to staff or pupils;
- is prohibited,
- is evidence in relation to an offence.

#### The role of the Class teacher

It is the responsibility of class teachers to ensure that the school values are reinforced in their classes, and that their class behave in a responsible manner during learning sessions.

The class teachers in our school have extremely high expectations of the children with regard to behaviour, and they strive to ensure that all children achieve to the best of their ability. The teachers treat all children in their classes with respect and understanding.

If a child repeatedly behaves inappropriately in class, the class teacher keeps a record of all such incidents on CPOMS. In the first instance, the class teacher deals with incidents him/herself in the normal manner (as above). However, if the inappropriate behaviour continues, the class teacher seeks help and advice from the other members of the staff in a hierarchical order. (Class teacher > Year Group leader > Assistant Headteacher > Deputy Headteacher > Headteacher). Each individual child's circumstance is considered when dealing with a situation to ensure that the child is able to understand the consequences and make amends.

Where external support agencies are involved in meeting the needs of a particular child, the class teacher liaises and works co-operatively with those agencies, as necessary, to support and guide the progress of the child. The class teacher may, for example, in consultation with the school's Inclusion Leader discuss the needs of a child with an educational psychologist or with professionals from other external agencies that could offer advice.

The class teacher or member of the Headship Team will also contact a parent if there are serious concerns about the behaviour of a child.

#### The role of the Headteacher

It is the responsibility of the Headteacher, under the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, to implement this policy consistently throughout the school, and to report to governors, when requested, on the effectiveness of the policy. It is also the responsibility of the Headteacher to ensure the health, safety and welfare of all children in the school.

The Headteacher supports the staff by implementing the policy, by setting the standards of behaviour, supporting children to self-regulated, and by supporting staff in their implementation of the policy.

The Headship Team keep records of all incidents of misbehaviour that have been addressed by them.

The Headteacher has the responsibility for giving suspensions to individual children for serious acts of misbehaviour. For repeated or very serious acts of anti-social behaviour, the Headteacher may permanently exclude a child. These actions are taken only after the school governors have been notified.

#### The role of parents and carers

The school collaborates actively with parents and carers, so that children receive consistent messages about how to behave at home and at school.

We explain the school's Code of Conduct in the school prospectus and at year group Welcome Meetings, and we expect parents and carers to understand and support this.

We work to build a supportive dialogue between the home and the school, and we inform parents and carers immediately if we have concerns about their child's welfare or behaviour.

If the school has to use reasonable consequences to address a child's behaviour, we expect parents and carers to support the actions of the school. If parents and carers have any concerns about the way that their child has been treated, they should initially contact the class teacher. If their concerns remain, they should contact a member of the Headship Team to discuss the issues involved. If there is still no resolution, the Headteacher will become involved at this stage. Usually by this stage, issues are resolved to everyones satisfaction, however, if concerns remain then parents or carers have the option to contact the Chair of the Governing Body, in accordance with the school's Complaints Policy.

#### The role of governors

The governing body has the responsibility for agreeing as policy these general guidelines on standards of discipline and behaviour, and of reviewing their effectiveness. The governors support the Headteacher in adhering to these guidelines.

Our Inclusion Team monitor this policy alongside our linked Governor for Inclusion, Meredith Reeve.

The Headteacher has the day-to-day authority to implement the school's policy on behaviour and discipline, but governors may give advice to the Headteacher about particular disciplinary issues. The Headteacher must take this into account when making decisions about matters of behaviour.

#### Pastoral Support Programmes (PSP's)

Pastoral support programmes are put in place when it is necessary to provide a child with an alternative programme of support. It may be agreed as part of this programme to reduce the hours a child spends at school on a daily basis, in order to ensure successful transition into the school environment enabling effective access to the school curriculum. The intention is that the PSP is an inclusive measure in order to help to prevent suspension.

#### **Behaviour Support Plans (BSP's)**

Behavioural Support Plans are put in place for specific children who may have social, emotional or mental health needs that may require additional provision and/or support.

#### Suspensions

We are an inclusive school and do not wish to suspend any child, even when they exhibit serious behavioural difficulties. We will take every reasonable step to ensure that suspensions are avoided. However, in extreme cases, it may be necessary to suspend a child.

The school follows the national Permanent Exclusions and Suspensions in England, published by the Department for Education in September 2023 and has written this policy in line with the DfE guidance 'Behaviour in Schools: guidance for headteachers and staff' (2024).

Only the Headteacher (or Deputy Headteacher acting on behalf of the Headteacher), has the power to suspend a child from school. The Headteacher may suspend a child for one or more fixed-term periods in any one school year. In extreme and exceptional circumstances, the Headteacher may exclude a child permanently. It is also possible for the Headteacher to convert a suspension for a set period of time into a permanent exclusion, if the circumstances warrant this.

If the Headteacher suspends a child, she informs the parents or carers immediately, giving reasons for the suspension. At the same time, the Headteacher makes it clear to the parents or carers that they can, if they wish, appeal against the decision to the governing body. The school informs the parents or carers how to make any such appeal.

The Headteacher informs the LA and the governing body about any permanent exclusion, and about any suspensions beyond five days in any one term. (The Headteacher will also inform the Chair of Governors about all suspensions and exclusions).

The governing body itself cannot either exclude a child or extend the suspension period made by the Headteacher.

The governing body has a suspension/ exclusion appeal committee which is made up of between three and five members. This committee considers any suspension/ exclusion appeals on behalf of the governors.

When a 'review panel' meets to consider a suspension, they consider the circumstances under which the child was suspended, consider any representation by parents/carers and the LA, and consider whether the child should be reinstated.

The governor 'review panel' review decisions, but do not have the power to force a school to reinstate an suspended pupil.

#### Monitoring and review

The Headteacher monitors the effectiveness of this policy on a regular basis. They also reports to the governing body on the effectiveness of the policy and, if necessary, makes recommendations for further improvements.

The school keeps a behaviour log on CPOMS. Class teachers make records of any recurring classroom incidents regarding specific children. Serious incidents which have resulted in the involvement of the Headship Team are also recorded. Significant behavioural incidents that occur at break or lunchtimes are also recorded accordingly.

The Headteacher keeps a record of any child who is suspended for a set period of time, or who is permanently excluded.

It is the responsibility of the governing body to monitor the occurrence of both suspensions for a set period of time or permanent exclusions, and to ensure that the school policy is administered fairly and consistently.

The governing body will pay particular attention to matters of equality and discrimination; it will seek to ensure that the school abides by the non-statutory guidance *The Duty to Promote Race Equality: A Guide For Schools* (published by The Commission for Racial Equality), and that no child is treated unfairly because of race or ethnic background.

The governing body reviews this policy annually. The governors may, however, review the policy earlier than this, if the government introduces new regulations, or if the governing body receives recommendations on how the policy might be improved.

Signed:	<del></del>
Print Name:	
Date:	<del></del>
	APPENDIX ONE
The list of prohibited items is:	
• knives and weapons;	
• alcohol;	
• illegal drugs;	
• stolen items;	
• any article that the member of	f staff reasonably suspects has been, or is likely to be used:
*to commit an offence,	or
*to cause personal inju	y to, or damage to property of; any person (including the pupil).
• an article specified in regulati	ons:
*Tobacco and cigarette	papers;
*Fireworks	
*Pornographic images	